TME JOINT STAFF
WASHINGTON, DC

Reply ZIP Code: ' NISM NQOR.- 04
20318-0300 17 Seprember, 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR THE UNDER SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR POLICY

Subject” Altlegation of Drlair.ce Abusc

1. (Ul Thank yeu for the oppartunity to respond Lo your reguest for
information rcgarding an aliegation by the _of detaince
abuse at JTF-Guantanamo.

2> el USSOUTHCOM has reviewed all available information and
found no merit 1o the allegation of abuse of t JTF-
Guanianamao. '‘as uncooperative and had 10 be
forcibl remaved from his cell. During the removal, he suffercd minor injuries
that were treared by medicai staff. The mnciden: was nor a beating as described
in the media report. The guards are trained o use the minimum amourt of
force necersary dunng a forced cehi extruction.

i Im The Join Staff point of contact i+« [ KGN

HAL b

MICHAEL D. MAPLES
Major General, USA
Vice Directar, Jdaint Staff

-3

Refererice:

Classified By: RADM W.D. Sullivan, USN; VD.1-5
Reason: 1.4 (a.c.8) .
Declassify On: 14 Scptember 2029
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1 USD/Pi mcmorandum, 1 Scprember 2004, 404 /011533-DA, “Allcgation
of Dera‘nes Abuse”
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OFFICE OF THE UNDER SECRETARY OF DEFENSE

WASHRGTON DL 203212000

October 8, 2004

POLICY

meroraNorM For [

SUBJECT: Allepation ot Detaines Abuse (L)

asked vou 1o Jook

into public reports that a
was subjested 10 1orure gnd systeraric abusc at Guanluninmo  You requested my assistance to

respond 10 the - FOYUCs:.

ﬁ%ﬂﬁmvl'-‘kasc assarc e NG |- th<ir detainces
have nover been subjected 1o torture or sysiemauc abuse, and the United States treats ail
delzinces and will continue 1o trezt al! detanees 4t Guantanamo humanely and. (o the extent
appropriaic and consistenl with miliary pecessiy . m d marmer consistent with the principles of
the Third Geneva Convention ot 1949,

w Tuttlies ansaw 1 askru
USSOUTHECOM to review its records of I Ti: Vice Dircetor of the Joint Stafl has
informed me Wiat v review of all availuble informuuon found no merit 1o che allegation of abuse
o 31 | TF- ¢iTMO. (n addnion. the Navy Inspecior (Uaneral has conducted an
tndependen: review af aperations 3! JTF-GTVO, specifically o look for any issuc of
malireaunenl or abuse. His imvestigaton did oot uncon zr any such incidents involving abuse of

m_wns uncooperative and had (o be

forcibly removed 1rdm his cetl. Although puards are raned (0 use the mintmum smount of
force necessary dunng 4 forced cell exraciion, suff¢red minornjunics tha: w ere
treaed by medical saff Addinonally, whnie has some mienata! health issucs, these are
not a result of any physical abuse at Guanianamoe. In fact, e 31 F-G''MO Behaviarat bHealth
Services regularly sees v 29 of tve reyuesis for medical saizvtion relued w his
mental health issucs have been met

{U) Thank you for the opportamty (0 assist you in this meler. Please conact e or my
staf? shoutd have any questions cr concems

Matthew Wkman :
Depuly Axsistan: Secsetary of Nefence
Dutamed Affary

Denve.l Hum Muliipic sonrces
Reasors | 4 (2).th), (c)and {2)
Duclasue s, Ouvivbet 7 2019
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OFFICE OF THE UNDER SECRETARY OF OEFENSE

VIASA HOTON, 0 20307240

PCLITY

In response refer 1
5 . O4013783.DA

FOR DIRFCTOR. JOINT STAFF

B - Fes dany
~ 0 e awt

SUBIFCT. Detaines Abuse Aflegation (U

e Thank you for providing me infurmation regardig the elegarions made
conceming Guantanamo dotainee
used your response 10 assist in my reply 1o the Department of State (copy enclosad).

s Che Deparmnent & State b requesied additional information specifically
rezargmy why R os removedt from his celt as well as what specific imjurics he
sustzined 1 reguest your assistance sith obtsining this infurmation.

1 Please provide vadr response by Navember 32004, The points of contast {or
this acL00 Wt

o 2 ’
- l
At} .
rid ; (4
S e J——

Magthew Whaman
Lepu Assaitant Sucrcwan of Detense
Detiunee A flairs

Encloaurc

Qenive 2 srom, Multapls suries
Redaont VS oap (o) sovimniye
Declas gy Ditaber 26,2013
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THE JOINY STAFF
WASHIRGYOR, BC

Reply ZIP Code: DJSM-1160-04
20318-nnnn ’ 08 November 2004

MEMORANDUM FOR THE UNDER SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR POLICY

Subject: Detainee Abuse Allegation (U)

1. () Thank you for th
allegations of abuse of a
Facility (GTMO).

2. {8y REEr USSQUTHCCM again reviewed all available information and found no
rmerit to allegations that s abused.

as forcibly removed from his ¢ell for failing to follow orders from his
guards. Security personnel only use force as the last resort in requiring a detainee to
comply with instructions.

3 a7 s «stzined contusions 1o his face and head, and suffered a
small abrasion on the bridge of his nose. He lost consciousness for several minutes
before being taken to the Naval Hospital emergency raom whene medical personnel
conducted a CT scan. The scan revealed no fractures to the base of his scull, facial
structures or sirnuses, but did show soft tissue swelling bver the left aide facial bone.
Medical personnel also examined his abdomen and found it normal.

4, éUi The Joint Staff p‘ofm of contact is _

¢ opportunity to provide additional informnation regarding
hdctaincc at Guantanamo Bay, Cuba, Detention

AR

NORTON A. SCHWARTZ
Licutenant General, USAF
Directar, Joint Stafl

Reference
1  USD{P) memorandum, 04/013783-DA, 27 October 2004, “Detainee Abuse

Allegation (U)”

Copy to:
DASD(DA)

! | Classified By: RADM W.D. Sullivan, USN, VDJ-5

Reasan: 1.4 (a, c, 8,
Declassify On: 28 October 2014

-sEeREFHREL-Fo-USA-and
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OFFICE OF THE UNDER SECRETARY OF OEFENSE

WARSHINGTON ©L 2030° 20065

Novembe- 22, 20048

roin

memoranous For [ NGNGNGEEEEEEEEE

SUBJECT: AHlegation of Detainee Abuse (U)

WREEEFollow ing my letrer of October 8. 2004, your office asked for further

informarion regarding the | (e remava) of

ram hiz cell. 1t)s Dub policy not to detaii the specifics of such
incidenig for foree protection and dewinee pritacy concerns. However, | will provide the
fulluwing fur your use in reply to e

ersemressimr S - o'y rermoved from his cell for

failing 10 follow orders from his guards. Security personnct only use force as a last reson
in requiring a detainec 1@ comply with instructions. -usmmcd injuries 10 his
heud during the exiraction He wai immeadistels evaluated and treated by rmedical
personnel. His skult and abdomen were examined. No traciures were found.

wilmihldudeu 5 stulct in My pres 1ous reply, wa SFM:SH gations of abuse a

JTF-GTMO revealed no 1omure or systemanc abuse o

(L") Thank you for the opportunity 1o ass1st you in this magter. Please contact wie
or my staff shauld you have gny questions of coneerns. /

LS

‘\Imthc\ZW axman
Deputy Assistanl Secrcuury of Dcfcnse
Delsinee Aftairs

Devived Soe Muaspiv saurcus
Reasons | 3 (an tb), (c) and (0
Dectavaly - Nowentber 22,2002

.“
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DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
HEADQUARTERS, JOINT TASK FORCE GUANTANAMO
US.NAVAL BASE, GUANTANAMO BAY, CURA
APQ AE 99360

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD

SUBJECT: Allegations of Torture regarding ISN 70

1. ISN -760 has been one of the most. if not the most, cooperative find influential detainees

e tomed himself in to the Mawritanian authorities in
November 2001. ] In July 2002, be was
turned over to the US in Bagram, AF and amrived in GTMO on 05 August 2002.

2. 760 reported 1 his interrogator on ¢ following story of torture that
occured here at GTMO during the months of Augnst through October of 2003. According to the
detainee, approximately a year after his ammival here he was subjected to tortere by personnel at
Guantanamo. He has pamed some of the personnel involved. Some names are consistent with

persomnel whe were present in — |
i M. X (masked the entite time),

Specifically, he mentioned
two Arab men

one with Egyptian accent, one with Jordanian accent)
Allegations included:;

_

5. Sleep Deprivation.

. . AR 15-6 GTMO Invesligation
i@l gu@eepe - Exhibit % of 76 Exhiblts .

—————525 S ——————
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b. Extreme He stated that he was forced to. . The detainee described
a room which the detsinees all called the “freezer”.

6. Exposure to Cold. The detaince stated that his interrogators put ice directly against his skin,
all over his body. Interrogators would pour water over his head and body. When the ice melted,
new ez was pu i his lotting or s, A
I ,.

7. -760 states that as a result of this forture he was coerced into signing & statement that
implicated him e detainee has since recanted
that statement. Within the time that he has been completely compliant, he has denied ever being
involved in or knowing about

8. Recommendation. Pass this information up the chein of cormmand to facilitate an
investigation into the detainee’s allegation of torture.

/IORIGINAL SIGNED//

Special Projects Team Chief
CAPT, USMC
NIG/ICE
Received by [ NN
Signature: A
Date: Pl
Time:
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SUMMARIZED WITNESS STATEMENT OF MG (RETIRED) MIKE
DUNLAVEY

MG Mike Dunlavey, FORMER COMMANDER, JTF-170, was interviewed and made
the following statcment on or about 1007 bours, 17 March 2005, at WFO, Aslington, VA:

- Appointment memos were shown to this witness. The witness went over the allegations.

Witoess sworn by LtGen Schmidt. The witness provided the fellowing testimony:
BACKGROUND:

How ] became the JTF-170 Comumander? 1 was working at the National Security
Agency. On 14 February 2002, I was contacted to meet with the SECDEF. Ireceived 2
joint service billet description. I met with the SECDEF on the 20th or 21st of February
2002, along with the Deputy SECDEF, Wolferwitz and a pumber of other persornel.

The SECDEF told me that DoD bad accumulated a number of bad guys. He wanted to
set up interrogation operations and to identify the senior Taliban and senior operatives
and to obtain information on what they were going to do regarding - their opcrauons and
structure.,

The SECDEF said he wanted a product ind be wanted intclligcncc now. He told me
what he wanted; nat how to do it, ,

Initjally, I was told that I would answer to the SECDEF and USSOUTHCOM. 1did not
have to deal with USCENTCOM. Tbeir mission had pothing to'do with my mission. .
Everything bad to go pp.to USSOUTHCOM then to JCS. The directions changed and I
got my marching orders from the President of the United Stales. I was told by the
SECDEF thsat he wanted me back in Washington DC every weck 1o brief him.

I have 35 ycars of Intelligence experience. 1am a uial lawyer and between interTogations
in Vietnam, being a CI Commander, and as a trial lawyer, I have done over 3,000
interrogations.. The SECDEF needed a common sense way-on how to do business.

The mission was to et intelligence to prevent another 9/11.

GTMO Situation:
Mike Lehnert did a miraculous job of getting Camp X-ray set up.
When 1 got to GTMO the facility consisted of literally a dangling fence. Detainces were

right next 10 one another. I the Seabee hut for eu.mplc. everyone saw who was being
interrogated.

. AR 15-6 GTMO Investigation
‘e g Exhibit __ Y3 of 76 Exhibits
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DoD photographers were taking pictures for historical purposes. They published them
with po regard for security. My job was to establish it,

-was the Assistant J2. He worked up the TMD and tried to fill it with
bodies to accomplish the interrogation mission.

We bave not fought a real war since Vietnam. Except i:or DHS, our interrogators were
virmually inexperienced. It was ag OIT situation on the ground at GTMOQ.

When I arrived, 1 met the Special Agent in Charge (SAC) for the FBI. He was a SAC oul
of Miami. Interrogations had started but thére was no system. For cxaml:lc. the
interrogators thought -was the big dog. He made a lot of noise in the prison grounds
but he was not the big guy. There simply was no process in place to assess who the real
leaders were.

TTE-160 was losing contro) of detainees. There was a major riot with the detainees.
They were shaking gut their blagkets and throwing food.

I tried to set up a process that would work for the FEL [N orked the
U.S.S. Cole incident. He was the best interrogator. He was a native speaker and was

very, very good.

The military linguists were warthless. They came out of school and could order coffee,
buz they were getting smoked by the detainees.

The guards were living o betier than the detainees.

The standard was 1o tregt them bumanely.

Frankly, the 1992 version of FM 34-52 had a problem with it. It was 18 years old and it
was how interrogations were done for POWs. We had world-class prisoners. Not EPWs
or POWs, When we.got them they had already becn detained for five months and had
their stories already down.

Physical torture does not work. It does not give you intelligence. Rapport, relationship
dependency, the Koran, and the prayer beads give intelligence. It hasto be a dependency
relationship. . oy

My people, the intemmogators, got briefed on what my task force rules were.

The Geaeva Conventions applied. I treated them as human beings, but not like soldiers.

They had a significant culturc. The rugs and beads were significant to me. Ilet them
praciie region [

The detainees do not control the environment.

10
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Everyday we had nndercover FBI agents or_intcrrogzting. We did want to
protect the identity of the people. We had news media almost continuously on the island.

We eventually got good infofma.tion on who the leaders were and then we surprised them
with a response team. We grabbed theém and took them out to the Brig where the ICRC
could see them, but they could not 1alk to them.

We had detainees that jumped the guards. There was 3 guy that took the MRE spoon,
shaved it down and made a scalpel. We changed their sheets to the sheets in the federal
prison sysiem so they can't be tom or tied. They took magnets, welding rods, aud
fashion them into weapans. We collected a foolocker full of weapons.

INTERROGATIONS:

We built Tiﬁr Tears I

The Combined Investigative Task Force (CITF) brought 1o the staff and the Joint
Commander, a capability to collect evidence to criminally prosecute cases.

-t :
Our mission was 10 stop Americans from being killed. We were tryiag to work through
the disconnect between the CITF nuss:oa and mine. 1 moved out smartly and met with
the CINC.

CITF was pot under my contral. 1 did not control the day-to-day operations. They had
good investigative skills and had experience dealing with these pcople ‘We had mass
murderers.

The FBl SAC came every two wecks. They could not decide what to do. They-never
: built up any type of rapport. We had problems from the get go with the FBI. They bad
: the best interrogators, Interrogations were donc in my facilities. Any intelligence they
got they would share with us.

We bad an SOP on how we did business. We knew from the Manchester document that
they would accuse us of torture and inbumane treatment.

. 11
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DETAINEE ISN 063: -

ISN 063 was the Chief UBL Scerctary. He was hard-core. ||  EGTGTGTNGEGEGEGEGE

The FBI took him for three weeks o 30 days. What happened? They reached a point
and they realized they were getting nowbere. JCITF got their shot at hkim. FBI had their
shot. H‘We bad to up the Annie on what is going to work on this guy.

We pul 2 proposal togetber. The whole cultural thing came to play. The Geneva
Conventions came in to play regarding not threatening their family. They only carcd
gbout-their family. We could not tell them that we had his family.

1 thought only one thing worked. We looked at the Geneva Conventions. Nothing
proposed was significant paip or torure. Before we did anything 1 had my JAG and other
lawyers go to work on what was legal orillegal. That is how the proposal came out from
L'I'Cﬁ The plan went up through the Chain of Command, There was no.Tirm
policy on interrogation techniques. We tised what was done in the past from the FBL

The plan went through General Hill & USSOUTHCOM then through ICS 1o OSD.

ABUSE ALLEGATIONS:

I would show up unannounced to see what was going on in the interrogations. Someone

being oul of line is very possible. 1won't equate it to NYPD Blue. There were situations
where a guy would utinate or jack off on a female interrogator. He did it to offend her. I
would not allow them to use religion as a shicld. The detainses threw feces at the guards.
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An Article 15 was given 10 a guard for hosing down & detainee. ‘The detainee threw a
bucket of urine on him.

If something was going wrong, the climate in the command was comfortable for self -
reporting,.

-

We all knew the rules; and we followed them period.

I fell on my sword for the guy that was 100 years 0ld. He was 90 to 105 ycars old and in
his 4th lifetime. - He had no real good information. If hie died we could not do a forensic
study. I would violate Sharia He was not an American soldier that would not come out
in one piece. There were two other guys in their 70s to 80s. Oné was a cab driver that
took Al Qaeda to the border. We got him out of there in October. We released 211
detainees. Only Ai-Qaeda reponed abuses. None were abused. If a guy had information,
we would focus on him.

The duoct tape incident, I remember that. It was in June or July 2002. 1did an intcrnal
investigation. They sat and screamed at us. 1 think the MPs helped the interrogators. 1
don’t know if the guard was directed 10 restrain the detainee from doing something

As a judge if they screamed in court, [ would tape them to a chair and tape their mouths.
In alegitimate detainee facility, you would doit. If we did not, they would do it.

The detainees were treated humanely. They had a high statos of care. They were not )
EPWs. They refused to identify themselves. On the postcards they gave us the wrong
name.

Humane is who we are as the American military.

S
My first lesson was in Vietnars, I went out in the field and the South Vietnamese had
two POWs. They got screamed at and kicked around. ] watched what was going on. 1
was a graduate of DLA. There was a big plate of boiled rice with flies on it. . I asked one
of POWs when he had Jast eaten. He said, “four days ago and water two days ago”,
They chained him to a .50 cal and said he would kill him if he ran away. Yhad acanteen.
I drank and gave himn a drink. It worked. I got his narme.

1 employed what worked and did not work.



I talked 10 LTC‘Mut what his guys recommend we do to up the Annie. We
talked to FBI, DHS, and CITF. All technigees recommended were techniques generally
used in the intelligence community. None was torture or inhumane treagment. The legal
review was sent to General Hill. We came uwp with Citegory 1 and 2.

Removal of clothing? I don’t remerber unless it was a security issue. Naked is not the
right thing to do. Mt is not effective and not 2 normal procedures. [ don’t remember ever
reviewing a report of a detainee being found naked. Ican’trecall that bappening. 1can't
say néver,

Regarding the use of dogs. The dogs wonld be used to escort movement of personnel
from detention to inlerrogation faciliies. Dogs wete there to intimidate. There were only
four dogs in the whole facility. They were there to prevent riots and for security

The dogs were under control of the MP handler. They would have the dogs look at the
detainces. On the other side of the coin, we do use the dogs as prisoner control in the
federal system. We did not let the dags bark or bite detainess. If Mllbrought dogs to
my attcntion, I probably would have approved it. We did not use the dogs on the
prisoners.

Keep in mind, they don't Like dogs. Unless the dogs are on patro], they would be in an
interrogation room. Using dogs is cqual 10 the Fear Up technique. It breaks their
concentration in their response to the intcrrogation techniques. 'lhey would be l.lunkmg
about that dog. Is the dog a real threat? Absolutely not.

There was an mterrogat‘or thar was -thzt had to be removed. He got into it with
oge of the detainees. It got ous of contro! and he physically mishandled the detainee.. He
belted him and handcuffed him to the eye-balt on the floor.

We physically removed an FBI agent when he went across the desk al a detaipee.. It
happened in my first three months, He 'was 2 big kind of guy. The detainee said
something like he, knows his family and that he was going to kill thern. - I think it
happened during my tenure.

FBI impersonation? No, not on a normal course of business. We did not identify who
people where. The names and rank were covered. The FBI wore polo shirts and their

- badpe. The CITF did the same thing. It-was par of the deception techniqne. Maybe

there was a complaint. I never knew ot heard about it.. Would CITF and FBI act as
- DoD? Jt could have been a technique. |

Interfering with FBI: we bad a significant difference of opinion. There was 2
management issue where [Jfiwould come in and did not coordinate for a detainee
because they wanted to talk to the detainee right away. FBI had interrogation plans.
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They did not brief DoD. CITF was going in without telling us. Every IP had to
coordinated for facilities and linguists.

Loud music and yelling was part of a sequence of events to disrupt the detainecs thought
process.

Chaining the detainee in a fetal position is not a normal procedure to be used in
interrogation. If the detaines leaped at ap interrogator, it might have been used for
security. It is not a normal procedure. The interrogators were instructed not 1o touch the
datainecs. They were to leave it to the guards,

If short shackled, the detainee had doue an offensive action.

Food and water degrivation I find incredibly hard to believe. BG Baccus would not have
tolerated that. Short rations were a disciplinery process. ICRC was there everyday. The
Chaplain was there everyday. The average detainee gained 16 pounds They got medical
attcntmn everyday.

The detainces went on a bunger strike. When weight metabolism deceased they went
down to the medical facility. They had 10 give the detainees forcible IVs. They wanted
Ensure, We made 2 joke about it.

There was po lap dance or rubbing vup on detainees. There is no doubt the interrogators
took off their BDU tops. They wanted 1o be comfortable. ‘The bardcore detainees did not
respond to women. They would not Jook at women. I did not approve it under any

- circumstances, It was stepid and offensive under the Geneva Conventions. It does not
serve any uscful purposc If that occurred, I want to see the FBI feport.

Red ink used as mcnstrual fluid? ['ve oever beard of that techquc It would disrupt the
intelligence and prosecution gathering operations.

Ghost detainees...every person that landed on the island was processed through the MP
cycle. ’

JTF-160 was in disarray when I 100k over. They- bad 60 outsianding Inspector General
complaints. We tried 1o clean up as much as we could before MG Miller came.

JTF-170 served two Anicle 15s to two individuals for personal misconduct, It was not
detainee related. .

Six weeks later we discovered our best interrogator was
He was prosccuted and
He was under surveillance for .
interrogator. He was sept back for prosecution.

d was under investigation.
e tough part was he was ourbest
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There was a LTC Reservist who was a closet alcoholic. He was part oF-comingenL

He could not perform and I suspected something was wrong. His roommate told us that
he was dowm‘ng alcohol every night. 1 had him removed.

Other than the incident with FBY contractor that physxca!ly went after the detainee, I don't
recall any other problems with FBI agents and detainees. LTC G L.TC
might have counscled someone for wrong or inappropriate behavior.

I counseled people on the lack of preparation. 1did it as a group. I counseled FBI. 1
wever had information from the IG or JAG that we had a problem. It would stick out.

I:1d FBI did separate interviews. “Ihave faith that the [llvas oot abusing
detainees. Ihad a high degree of faith. Ihad access to anything I wanted.

I also had high faith that the FBI was condncting proper interviews. Physical abuse just
does not work. Successful prosccutmn was their goal. They did pot want to jeopardize
that.

We had four to six guys in Camp X-Ray. To put a detainee in X-Ray réquired that we
nolify USSOUTHCOM and JCS and we would have done a report in writing.

I was interviewed for the Church report.
Virtally po one had a degree of expertise 10 deal with these people. They do not

subscribe to our values legally and morally. We did benefit from some great young
people. We had a native Pakistani that was flueni in Arabic.

FBI's approach was that you would stay ia jail if you did not talk to us.
Was ISN 063 tormured? No.

I declare under penalty that the foregoing in a tric and correct surminary of the statement
given by the witness, MG (rer) Mike Dunlavey. Executed ai Davis-Monthan A.u Force
Base, Arizona, 0a 29 March 2005. :

-a

ﬁ, %ALL M. SCHMIDT

Lieutenant General, USAF
AR 15-6 Investigating Officer
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SUME WITNESS STATEMENT OF MAJOR GENERAL GEOFFREY D.
- MILLER

MG Miller was interviewed on'18 March 2005 at WFO, Arlington, Virginia. The witness
was sworn by LtGen Schmidt His statement was substantally as follows:

| was the Commanding General for the Joint Task Force, Guantanamo Bay, Cuba from 4
November 2002 to 26 March 2004.

My overall responsibility was interrogation and detention at Guatagamo Bay, Cuba. ITF-
160 was sexup for detention and JTF-170 was sct up for interrogation. My task was to
integrate Ibem so that they were in synchronization. USSOUTHCOM wanted to improve
intelligence and detention. 1was told to fix it. It was broken Idid not perceive that 1
waorked for the SECDEF. General Dunlavey and 1 had four days of overlap. Webad &
change over from 4-9 November 2002. We did not have a convetsafion sbout whetber be
bad authority beyond GTMO. JTF-180 in Afghanistan was not in my command
relationship. It was a coordination and information relationship. The detainees did come
‘from JTF-180. Detainees and interrogators all came through JTF-180. There were no
detainees that came from IRAQ or Operation IRAQ) FREEDOM when | was there.

The command climate at GTMO was dysfunctonal when ] arrived. Thearc were two
separate organizations with senior leadership that was at odds with each other regarding
how they would integrate their missions. My first job was putting that together. The
leadership bad a single mission focus that was séparate.  Single unit disparity did not
allow the units to be successful. There was no abuse or torture going on. The '
organization was not working together efficicolly. It did not affect the detainees. SOPs
needed to be updated. The bésic standard was going on. The detainees were treated in a
burnane manner. »

1 did receive FM 34-52° The additional techniques that were requested went up to

GEN Hill. I was wcomfortable with Category 111. 1 was not comfortable using Category ..
I11 techniques ip interrogations. We were going towards incentives. Category Il would
not help develop intelligence rapidly and effectively from the detainees there. T did not
intend to use them. They were approved, but not directed. 1had the latitude to use them.
[t was an order that came down through the SECDEF, 1 did not question them about not
using the techniques in interrogation. They wanted to do aggressive techniques. Special
[nterrogation Plans (IPs) had 10 be done ib detail and sent to a higher authority. The
purpose of the technigues was to support the nation's effort. There were two Special [Ps;
they were enormous documents. The [Ps were the way 10 set standards. Everyone
understood where the limits were. ' v

Howtoafolling was 1?7 1’ be frank with you, when you put an organization together
you s2y here are the néw standards. Some thought they were more apgressive. 1 would
state how to do and what to do. It is part of team building for success. You win the
battle one day at a time. Senior leadership got on board right away. That is why GEN
Hill asked me to come down to GTMO. .

_ AR 15-6 GTMO Investlganon
: Exhbit _ M€ -~of 76 Exhibits




We had incidences of good faith mistakes. We stopped them. | would do a
Commander’s Inquiry and carrective action was done on an interrogator. Retraining was
done. The interrogator would go back under the supervisor and then interrogate again. A

junior interrogator needed oversight. [t was 2 handful of occurrences. The occurrences
did pot rise to torture, malireatment, or inhurnane treatment. 1 had an interrogator tha(
exceeded the bounds. ]t was a female interrogator who took off her BDU shirt and
inappropriately rubbed on the detainee. The female rubbing was brought to my attention
by a contract interrogator. We pulled her out. We found she did cross boundaries. She
was given an administrative Letier of Reprimand end retzined her. One incideat, the
interrogator asked the MP to help in ap interrogation and the MP was actively involved. |
got it fixed. We continued to refine the policy. We built the SOPs. It was a continuously
evolving operation. We had a weekly meeting that had enormous leadership involvement
about staying within standards. Whoever violated the standards received appropriate
action. In another incident an MP could nof control his temper. He struck a detainee, He
was a pretty good soldier. 1t ocewred in the cell block. The standards were well known.
If any standards were violated, appropriate action would be taken. When a misteke was
made we took appropriate action.

The detainees are ruthless, murderous people. We had o teach interrogators and MPs not
to hate. | speot a lot of time with the chain of command and how to contro] them
professiopally. We had to talk about this to all interrogators.

There was a high leader touch, We had 1o lead the led. I was down there engaged at the
Camp, 1spent enormous amount of time going through the cell block, It was difficult
keeping that balance. We had weekly meetings. The lawyer went over the standards.
The lawyer would tell the interrogators that if you cross the line call me. It gottobea
joke sometimes. 1 said cﬂ]&m ot cross those standards.

General Hill 1old mc that you are the Commander. Here are the basic guidelines, go
ahead, and go forward.

* We bad numerous actions routed tarough the 52, I woriked for Generat win,
A direct line to him would interrupt his command authority. 1 was very clear of my chain
of command. 1 alked to-OSD almost every day. There was lots of talk. | understood for
whom | worked for. I had informal conversations with OSD. .1 sent a report to
DEPSECDEF through USSQUTHCOM. ‘

I have known General Hill for 20 years. If 1had a problem, ] would call him. We talked
once or twice a week. 1 got guidance and all the support | needed.

The Contrictors probably made up roughly 50% of the personnel. There were a higher
number of contract analysts that supporicd the interrugation mission. 1 gave the same

. talk Lo the contract analyst, their supervisor, and contract interrogators. [ told them they
were soldiers without the uniform.
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The FBI was at the established weekly meeting. 1had an FBI agent come down. They
had opportunity to come to the meeting every week. We had a meeting and 1 gave the
FBI Special Agent (SA) an bour. { told him it was anything he wanted 1o talk about.
They had  differenl perspective. They had a law enforcement perspective. There was
significant friction between the FBL CITF and JTF on how interrogations were done. It
was the first one and then SS_ame later. 1said here are the standards. No
FB1 SA questioned interrogation methodology. For segregation, we bad to go to General
Hill for 30 days. No one from the FBI came to talk o me about that. One of the
Doctor’s of CITF came to talk to me abou! interrogations.

1 am pot arf-expert on detention or interrogation. | spent an enormous amount of tume 10 -
help me understand bow 1.cap do-this business better. 1 had a talk-with cvery leader,
CITF, FB! and the JTF and told themn that they would follow the standards. We would
come in off vecasion and look at interrogations.

Nothing placed me in a compromising situation.

There was an interrogation SOP in place when 1 got there. 1split the JIG, ICE, and 12,
They were counterproductive. It was the most dysfunctional I've ever seer. 1could not
believe it. It was scnior leadet's squabbling on personal matters. It was debilitating to
the organization. The JIG did normal 2 stuff.

Military working dogs- No, not in inerrogations. They weree'thCamp X-ray for Al
Katam They were used for detention, not interrogation.

Duct tape - - Not that ] knew of. Afier 1 left ] was told that a senior interrogator duct taped
someone's mouth. 145 told it was| that is only speculation. 1 was
surprised.- I don’t inow when it happened orthe dates.

I knew about the false flag. 1 don’t know any instance. It was an authorized technique in
the IP.

]mpetsonaling FBI- No.

Yelling at detainec and loud music  In the Special IP, yes.' * It was ap approved
technique. The interrogator was authonzed to do that.  ~~

Interference with FBI - There was an FBI and CITF focus on law enforcement on DoD
guidance 0 develop intelligence. Their focus was on evidence. We were developing
intelligence. They had a different focus. We followed DoD. FB] followed public law.

Sleep deprivation - This was in the Special IP for ISNs 063 and 760,_;
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Short shackling. While I was there the- detainees were chained 10 the eye-bolt for
security. Every interrogator saw the detainee’s legs and feet, [ saw hundreds of -
interrogations. There were no stress positions. | gave guidance.

Food and water we do ot use as a weapon. {ISN 063,gained 30 pounds.
Hat and cold temperature - Not to my knowledge.

Inappropriate touching is not authorized. It was brought 10 my atiention and we took care
of it. The touchiog was done by a

SGT-nevcr came to.my aftention.

Ink and mepstrual fluid —
Theve were no ghost detainees that were under the control of JTF-GTMO.

‘What humane treatment means to me are adequate food, shelter, medical care, and an
environment that would not cause physical or mental abuse.

Some interrogation technigues that SECDEF granted authority for waé beyond what I
was comfortable with,

I never saw a metno or received & memo from the FBI that commented on SIPs.

It was clear to all the standards. The boundaties were for all. FBI and CITF had the
same boundarnies for all DeD included. lo our discussions, everybody understood the
standards. We have the same guidance. Everybody was formally notified that the
supenior commander made the guidance for interrogations,

[ recognize the CITF memo objecting fo the Special IP, I sent the interim plan up and it
was approved by higher headquarters.

My focus was on the relationship between the CITF and the JTF. My focus wasto
unprove it. They were at odds professionally and personally to the detriment of the
mission. [ calied the CITF commander personally. We discussed that they were trying to
develop evidence and the JTF position is ot 1o develop evidence, but intelligence. The
meeting was attended by General Ryder (the C1D Comimander), the CITF commander,

- eod myself. Wetalked about an effective relationshiip aboul doing the mission.

Subordinates are to wortk together effectively. An interrogation plan was approved and
we followed the plan.
1 directed the Director of the JIG 10 conduct an investigation into the Jap dan epation.
1 apreed with his recommendations and findings. The Director of the JIG wag

as ap effective leader and did a good over watch. He was a senior
Ieader dovim 'there that would execute the mission.




The standards were known across the mission. 1 found out about the duct tape incident
later. )t never came to my level. [ believe it came to-m:ndon and she

took appropriate action.

-

I had several counseling sessions wi He is very fine man. He did operate ina
manner that demonstrated what the standards are.

1 am a standards guy. If you don’t follow the standards, 1'll take the appropriate action.
When bopest mistakes are made, you counsel, coach, and mentor.

| came to a dysfunctional prganization not with mission success. 1 spent a lasge amount
of time fixing it.

“SERE to be frank with you, SERE training was recommended to me. I said let's get the
SERE peaple down bere. They came down. There was one psychologist, Il There.
- were tochniques beyond what I felt comfortable with. They talked about stress positioos.
It was about spring whea they came. [ asked them to come down so 1 could know what
 they were talking about. Bring the experts down to talk 10 me and Jet me undersiand. |
did not accept some of the techigiques they wanted to use, '

1 arp aware of the 2 May 2003 memo | signed. It was in response to the up and down
incident. The Jetter was signed n response to an AR 15-6, It was a Fear vp. The MPs
were 1old not 1o do it anymore. This particular incidest was a single incident. There
were some cases of the MPs being actively involved in intefrogation; that was not my
guidance.

The ICRC brought several peneral statements for review.

The guidance every week revalidated the guidance. It was very important.
~The FBI and-rcpmemaﬁve came cvery 30 déys.

Interrogations require that we would restate the standards every time. I knew the contract
intetrogators. I gave them the same speech for standards. .

Theve was fairly large friction between JTF and ICRC. One of my focuses was fo make it
effective. li-was producing unnecessary friction.

ISNs 063 and 760
we needed special techniques. The Special [P for ISN 063 was 75
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They were exceptional and not to be used by an interrogator on other detainees.

_ IPs.

" Ldirected the JIG to put the Special IP togethet. The same was done for 1SN 760”
Y | 7porc both Spoc

"1 have not been through SERE. 1 don’t believe to my knowledge that the intmbgatoxs

weat through SERE. The Psychologist, Forensic Psychologist, and Clinical Psychologist
were trained through SERE. ' .

Most interrggators were school trained on tactical interrogation. Tactical debriefing in
strategic interrogation, some were wained. [t was a small number, Some picked up
training while there at GTMO.

We cstablisbed the Tiger T

1 bave seen seversl hundred interrogations now. When I showed up at GTMO I had
never before witnessed one.

I believe one of the things we found out holistically, Unity of command for success end |
siandards demonstrated success on a regular basis,

JTF-160 and JTF-170 was an ad boc organization that started from a cold start that we
normally would have in our institution. There were 2 lot of developmental operations
and procedures for strategic interrogation on how things should be done.

Abuse problems are sﬁn"bly about discipline setting, standards and developing these
standards. You need leadership involvernent that clarifies and focuses on the importance
of the mission. -

GTMO and braq are different. I have had a year and a half to ook at GTMO. GTMO
used standards, how to treat detainee that are not combatants, how to interrogate, and
incentive based interrogations. GTMO was successful.

The Spécial IP was an invaluable tool. It required senior leader evalvation. 1t was not
incentive based. It rapidly exploited enémy combatants that were extraordinary value to
the mission.

Thos¢ interrogations did not involve torture,
GTMOize inappropriately reads bad information. 1bave heard of it. 1f you apply a

Jeader and standard there is adherence 1o the standards. In another context, it brings
discredit to 2]} the leaders.

-

——
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On 26 March 2004, 1 departed the island and went 10 Irag three days later.
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MG Geoffrey Miller was interviewed, via secure telcpbone, a secord time on 31 March
2005 at 1843 EST. At that time Lieutenant General Schmidt advised MG Miller of his

rights under Asticle 31 of the Uniform Code of Military Justice.
Lt Gen Schmidt asked MG Miller several questions regarding cvents that have been
docurnentéd in the interrogation logs obtained from GTMO. Lt Gen Schmidt asked MG

Miller if he had ever read the interrogation logs and MG Miller responded that be had
not. MG Miller responded that be was unaware of the following events:

-on 21 and 23 Dec 02, MPs held down a detaines while SGT -tnddled the

detainee without placinp weight on the detainee

-on 4 Dec 02, 5G assaged the detainee’s back and neck over his
clothing

-on several occasions between November 2002 and January 2003, intetrogators would
adjust the air conditioner to make ISN 063 uncomfortable

- on 6 Dec 02, ISN 063 was forced to wear 4 woman's bra and had panties placed on his
head during tbe cotirse of the intarrogation

- on 17 Dec 02, ISN 053 was ta)d that his mother and sister were “whores™

-on botb 17 Dec 02 and 27 Dee 02, ISN 063 was told that he was a homosexual, or had
homosexual tendencles, and that other detsinees had foxmd out about these tendencies

- on 20 Dec 02, an interrogator forced 1SN 063 10 dance with a male interogator

- on several occasions in December 2002, 1SN 063 was subject to strip searches (MG
Miller stated tha! he had a vague recollection about strip searches for ISN 063)

- on 20"Dec 02, ap interrogator tied a leash to ISN 0635 chains and led him through 8
series of dog tricks

- that in October and November 2002, military working dogs were used in the

- interrogation of ISN 063

e

- that ISN 760 was subjected 10 hot or cold temperature changes to make hir
un comfortable

- that ISN 760 and his family were threatened




MG Milles stated that had he known of the threats toLSN 7?9:;11(1 his family, he would
never have gllowed it.

MG Milles stated that he was aware of the following:
- that detaifiess were yelled at and that music was used in interrogations

- that ESN 063]was mtmogated for 20 bours a day with 4 hours of sleep from 23
November 2002 unti] 15 January 2003

- thatESN O@ was seperated from the detainee population from 8 August 2002 uati! 15
Japuary 2003

- that\IfDR -mpersonated a Navy Captain from the White House

1 declare under penalty that the foregoing in a true and correct summary of the staternent
~ given by the witness, MG Geoffrey Miller. Executed at Dav:s-Mouthan Air Force Base,

Arizona, on 31 March 2005,
RANDALL M. SCHMIDT

. ~ Lieutenant General, USAF
- * AR 15-6 Investigating Officer




* printe oversight. And as descxibed above, MP/MI
" goordination is accomplished through official com-

muttication between the JIG snd the JDOG
(raﬂ:ier ‘than vig casual communication batween

fndividusd mterragatom and gusrds), Finally, the

command structure itself, which places both intel-

- ligence and detention operations under the com-
. . mand-of a single entity, JTRGTMO, promotes

accountability and unity of affort among all indi-

viduals st GTMO.
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nomenclature to describe the same (or vary simi-
ler) techniques; therefore, the list of techniques
represents our best’ effort™to harmonize the
nomenclsture across a,n-; threa theaters. The

techmques are organmgd azgo NWR:

o (I Teehnfqmaa 1 2ﬂ"‘1'edmgues spedfical-
ly asmmnted wﬁm 84-52 (the 17 doctri-
nal o8, pﬁkChmge of Scene Up

:Ead Dom’ﬁmigkm out separately, plus
72 Mutt andJeff, which was in the 1987 ver-
“Rgn of FM 34-52);

ﬂﬁechmques 21-37: The counter resist-

I mmquas approved in the Secretary

(U) At bottom, our investigation dfinter-

rogation techniques was focused on. tua.pnnu’ipal

areas; the development of approvbﬂ' te&.iques, .
- and what techniques were act.ni[bgubed by'ﬁﬁer

rogators on the ground. A mmpari'aen bebweotts"
these two Mluminates wmmmmn pél-

icy was adequately {%wad ~The chafton the .

-next pape provides & cou@gehemgve_picture of
both appmed&d'woy%mmmﬁon tech-

nigues at. GTBO, whmhmable‘l?ﬂneh B compar~

son to l;gggmaﬂ&

‘mm

o

"&.

o) A"?feg[ Words o of explanation regarding
the chart. First, #hs interrogation tedm:lques are-
listed on the vefrhcii axis. In orderto focilitate
comparisen nmong;,,GTMO Afghanistan and

Iraq, this list compnses the universe of possitle '

interrogation techniques from all three locations.

At times, the respective commands used different

JOINT STAFF
COPY NUMBER THREE

e i T .

W Defense's December 2, 2002 memoran:

jlm(deeephcnuhshedasaneparate tech-
pigque becanse it is closely related to the
Category I technicmies from the December 2,
2002 memorsndim, and presence of mili
tary working dogmahohshad a8 a peparats
techmique);

in the Secretary’s April 16, 2003 memoran-
dum that were in addition to the comter
resistance technites;

« . (U) Techniquea 41.50; Techniques taken
{rom a veriety of sources, including proposed
or approved techniques in Afghanistan or
Iraq, techniqies considered by the Detaines
Interrogetion Working Group, as well ss
techniques used during U.8. military BERE
training; and

-« (U) Techniques 51-68: Techniques probihit-

+ {U) Techmiques 88-40; Techmquesappmvad,.. R
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. s mdguer yellowgindicate& %ﬁ
: parﬁcn}ajtec&;que, bu.ttﬁ&tthatechmque is not

- _-whars appropriate, explavatory iiformation about
. thh mterrogatzon policy govemmg partieular
N txechmques. .

(U) Second, the varipus interrogation poli-
cles are presented in chrgnological order acrose the
hiorizontal axdis. This begins with the FM 34-52

Con guidmce. followed by the Secretary’s Decembet 2, qppl
", 2002 memorandum, fllowed by his mdsﬂ:on.-ﬁ‘"‘conrse, bv?.:oublesoma because this would indi-

-+~ .- JOINT STAFF
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(U) Fourth, the X markings on the chert
indicate where technignes were actually
employed, while bracketad=X markings (*[X]")
indicote where techniqueX thatequired advance

-motice and approvalmara-qmﬂﬁyed with such

notice and apprqyﬁ T{lus,w X markings in
yellow.or orange aﬁa (wfore ad¥ance notice and

" approval ay requiremx'epotemmlly problemats

ic, because %wauﬁ"-ﬁnﬂwate situations in
whichbuch a&wﬁ'&%mmd approval wera not
am@p and yet‘tbn teckniques were néverthelesa
Any X‘iynrkings lg red areas would, of

that memorandum on January 15, 2003, and ih&l«%uw Wﬂbxted techniques were employed,
Iy the current guidance, which has been %eﬁ‘ect piacement of X and [X] marlkings on
sinte April 16, 2003, =  thig chirt helps to illuminate whether interroga-

el
P
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(U) Third, ﬂ:emlmrsonmb.dmrtrepmmz

tion poliey was followed, it is important to-under-
stand the limitations of these merkings. Most

the approval atatus of a parucular techmque E'E-u-‘ aignificantly, they ‘do not indicate the frequency

-x.:

particular tima. Inord st=to.lens
mveshtus,gmenmwpsth%apam g toch-
nige-was apprmedformal u‘bo -white means
that no oﬂiaa}‘gufﬂa"ﬁgg en;for the tech-

tobe m@‘w notice to and appraval

by the Secreffiky; orange means that the technique
. 18 not. specificallifidentified by policy, but the poli-

cy in effect at the t?ﬁa forbids the use 6f non-iden-

tified techniquos v@_:jwut advancs notica 1o and

spprovnlbyﬂzeSemtmy- snd red represents toch- - -

nigues thet are prohibited by law ‘or policy under
all eireumstancea,

9"
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- identifies: the . -

with wlilch # particular technigue was employed

- -they merely indicate that our investigation -
showsd .that.the particular technique was.

employed at least once in the designated time

period.- Frequency.of use i addregeed . in more .. ...

detail in the fuller discassion of the Chart that.
appears below. '

(U) Qverall Compliance With Approved

Tochni

. (U)Anmitial exsmination of the chart
ruvesls that interrogations at GTMO have general-
Iy followed the approved policy, with some notable
e:nceptm There are four X markings in the red,

Ot s
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prohibited areas, but thése represent isolated inci.

_dents. There are several X markings in orange and

yellow araas, but most of these represent wther nse
of techniques that arguably fall within the broad
guitlance of FM 3¢-52 and therefare are not pertic-
ularly problematic, or situations in which particu-
lar technigues were used only once under apecific  reflectad
dircumstances. There are also several X roarkings

in white greas, but thin is not partienlarly surpris- p

ing. Interrogation policy did not always List every
conceivable technique that an inferrogator might
use, and interrogators often employed techniques
that were not specifically identified by policy it ™ TR

neverthelass arguably fall within its parametersic. o k-

———

h
{U) We found that from the h@nnmg of

techriques employed in more detafl, hawever, it is
Elpfal to have an understanding of the "Special
Intervogation Plans" (BlPs).th’at wara used tin two

particularly reaiscant .r.'hxgh'@!ue " dgtainees,

Mohenoed ol Enhisix md Nohametlou Ould

. Slahi. Tha esemp}oyaﬂjnt}zeseplam»e

in the %ﬂéﬁ%ouﬁ:ﬁm of them
ware used-gnly on thide two indfvidaals.. ‘These

ﬁﬂ The mterroganm plan for Kahtani, the

ZQsh_ﬁimker" who was denied entry inta the:

Interrogation operations to the pmmt, Merroza- Unifed States i August 2001 by a suspicious
tlon poliries at GTMOwemeﬁ'eeﬁml.v dzssemat— irumigration. Snspector at Florida's Orlando
od to interrogators and the mbamgators had"m" International Airport, has already beer: discussed

. ~-SEORENOFORN= a0

good, working knawlemhdas
Moreover, the close wﬁ'@gzancmth in] '
policy was due.in large paito those  aapects 0 of the
GTMO mipdel ¢ bo%.copm.and orguni
zation that placed deteni@. endifitelligence oper-

. ations m;der g comqu of a gingle entity, -

JTRGTVE coargination between inter-
rogators mﬁﬂ:tary"whee, adequate detention
apd mtmugsh%&reaonm, and well-developed
standard opemﬂngw:es. Strong command
overaight and effechvo leadership also played
important roles in emunngﬂmt interrogators fol-
lowed approved policy : .

X3) Before discussing the chart and the

maetitmaton

-above. On November 12, 2002, GEN Hill, the
S0UTHCOM Commander, gave -verbal approval

for use of all Category 1 and II counter resistance .
techniques against Kahtand, and JTEGIMO inter-. .
rogated Kahtani with some (but not all) of these

‘techniques from November 23, 2002 to Jaruary 15,
2008, (For simplicity purposes, the techniques
used during this time period are reflected in the:
second column, which did not begin -until
Decerober 2, 2002, when the Secretary offisially
approved the Categoty 1 and II techniques.)

=8 During this perfod, Kahtani-was isolat-

ed at-Camp X-Ray and interrogated forjxp to 20
hows at a time. The Categery I techniques of

157
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" yellinghnd multiple interrogators were frequently
'em;ﬂoysd 28 well as various means of deception

- .2 (guch as the use of &'
.+ the Gategory 1 technique of having the interroga-
Fat e torpmggnta false identity was not used. In nddi-

‘confederate detainee™), but

tion to isalation and up-to-20-hour intarrogations,

‘the following Category 11 techniques. were

emplayed at varioustimes: &tress positions, the use

" of false docuraents or reports, booding, removal of
all comfort items, MRE-only diet, and forced

. -grooming. More specifically, the stress positiona
~ employed with Kahtani consisted of chaining hig_

hands and feet to &n eyebolt in the floor, thus pﬁ-
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tary working dog handler brought a dog into the
interrogation room. The interrogator could not
recall whether the dog was miiagled or nnwmuzzled,
but stated that the dog wis on s,,leash and kept a
eafe distance away frain, W'We this is the
only eviderice vmguuldﬁpd%m port the use of
dogs against Iﬁ’ﬁ?wl h‘t!ide fﬁ.«htarm@tmn
room, ‘it m._,xeﬁmmd‘ﬁ. Y pomtave eniry under
"exploiting’ xﬁﬁadual pliﬁbins” and "presence of
mmtwmkhjid_ﬁsn the sectmd column of the
chaﬁn ' '._

'::.z ' .,_,

-msmtedwﬂermthisncﬂon.meral

‘ _,xﬁf

ventisig him from sitting up straight. And wbﬁg_-__mglzg;ﬁechnfﬁes were employed agninst Kakitemi

and principally during trannpmtaﬁon m"ther than

- questioning. Two Category II tedm&uesvmre not -

used during Kahtaui's interrogatitin; dnpnvam of

' hooding was used, it -wes employed.- mfr@em}y, " that d & not exactly match those found in

Tor 1, butwmmmi]armthatthey
werd not epecifically listed in FM 34-52. Amiong
these were the introduction of a “confederate®

light and audzbory stimuli, axid rumuwl,uf clothifiis~ detaineo (noted abave as a form of deception), the

>

m w .
Hlt is aomew&zuncbar from O cuﬁnvea-

. tigation shether (and to%that" éﬁwntl exploiting”

ihdividual pho):ﬁi,‘“
usad ed part c&‘l‘(alibam"s'ﬁ 3
that mil&nry \mrkmg do&wm present outaide
the mmm&unlzhmth 16 provide barking that
waa designed Fypgita tani and provide shock
value, Many ofthe interrogators and military

faar;-of doas, waa

" intelligence leadm'slip who were involved in his

interrogatiot. st:memly maintain that dogs were
never present in the interrogation 100m. One
intervogator that we interviewed, however, claimed

_in.a sworn glatement that on one occasion a ypili-

. 158. .
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use of red light or loud music in the intarrogation
room to induce stress, and slaup adjustment, in
which Kahtani's sléep cycles were altered ‘and con-

—m

trolled.. Because he was interroguted for upto 20,

“hoirs at'a tie, this sleep sdjustment sometiman
included limiting Kahtani to four hours of aleep a
.day, although paps were occasionally permitted.
Masking and lsbeling were aleo employed, which
are not listed as separats techniques in the chart,
but instead can be considered somewhat extreme
forme. of the pride and egoe down technique from
FM 94-52. Female invasion of space, in which a
female interrogator would touch Kabtani on the
head, shoulders and arms to induce stress; was also

. —
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frequently employed. This vtechnique is not spef.'Jf
feally listed in the chert, but can be considered a

variation of mild, non-imjurious physical contact, .

Finally, Kahtani was st times forced fo engpge fux
physical treining, during which he would stand

and it at the interrogators’ conmands. Kahtani -

wes checked daily by a doctsy, smd s medic was
alwgys presefit &t the site during interrogations.
As discusbed above, the combinsation of the numer-
one teehniques used on Kahtani during this period
neutralized his resistance training and produced
significant intelligence on al Qasdn operations,

~82¥ Mohamedou Ould mm{mm Was.
the subject of & second Spocin) Intérngatiop Plan

2003. As the /11 Commission noted, Slahixsacﬁ:’"
izen of Mauritanis and.an who
recruited several of tﬁe’ﬂl hﬁuoktmm Germany.

. He waa handed ouwesto 8% -%wmmamm
Force Base itEAf{," a@vas then trans-
.n~fermdfnGmOmAnglm2002. After. pewreral
mmeha‘&mn tions proved fruitiess
{Including T tmy’"nnwrogatmns based on the
apecific FM 34-&.tachmquas, as well as FBI itter-
rogations f‘ocuan&'-"-;pn rapport-building), JTF-
GTMO, via. SOUTHCOM, requested that the
Secret.ary of Défense approve a Spesial

isolation, intarrogations for up to 20 bours, ths use
of various types of sound, erﬁvaﬁon of light and

UECRETINOTONNT » Grvo

Mwumdu&edhthelMWmd BLof

Interrogation Plan for Slahi, ‘The plan included

auditory stimuli (whereby Slahi would at thmes be
placed in a gilent “white room™), removal 'of Bl com-
fart items, MRE-only dist,-forved grooming, and
slsep adjustzment. SOUTHOOM projected that the
interrogations would ke Rico-Svet a patiod of 90
days, with J’lT-GﬁdO togsseii%&n‘ effectivencas
évery 30 days. = ‘

P N
—
I
=3 5..
e !
-r
- 'M

=6 On “Hagust m_dnoa ‘the Soretary
appm‘ﬁfd-tha itgerogition ‘plan for Slahi. We note

waas
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* wi On August 25, 2003, Slaid was trans-
SR fened’from Camp Deita to isolation at Camp Echo
;' . in exy'elaborate moverent plan named Operation |
L E‘btodm. Thé purpose of the movement plan wes to '
D create the impression in Slahi's mind that he had
- beén transfarred from GTMO to another location.
Slahi was removed from his cell at Cenp Delta, fit-
) tedth.h biackout goggles and taken on a disor-
entmgbontnd!a that lasted between four and five
hours, before arriving at Camp Echo, In order to
beip create an atmosphere that something major
" was oemmng, dog teams accompanied the move-_ '-_ =
‘ment to and from the boat, andSlnhxwasa]sop& 'myhﬂ %smtmgamn did provide
mitted to overhear pre-plapnad deceptfs t im,\gencs, our investigation revealed
. conversations among other passengers. on 1 the boaf. '%he sk of tome troubling tachniques that appar-
v . enz;_tx_'ysﬁre not part of the approved intarrogation
. ‘ -erUpmhumvdmcaf@‘ﬁ%@,SIm fan. First, according to an August 2, 2003 memo- .
: " was kept in isclation for several ﬁy&mﬁhmmng renduzi. of record that summmarized that day’s ‘
intarroguated, pmamxmbly to allow tedudon to bﬁﬂﬂ- intarrogation session, the mfemgator told Slald -

eatly Septeraber Zmﬁégemgaunm hitiat~ rather "to deliver a masssge to him.” The message
. ed auging-the Spwa Iamﬁoﬁ\@m desm.hed was that the interrogator and bis colleagues-werg.. ... x5 =
. - %ick of hearing the gamme liss over and over axd are ’
e o7z e mations serionsly considering washing their henids of him,*
Once they had dona so, Slahi would "disappear and
naver be heard from agein® “The intertogator
assured Slahi “that there ere much worse places
than GTMO,” and asked hit. o use hia imagina-
tion to think of the woret possibile scenario he could
end up in." Ho told Slahi that 'beatings and phys-
ical pein are not the worst thing in the world," and
that if he did not talk, "he will very soon disappear
down a very derk hole,” and that *his very existence

' i n—
. @ —STCHETNOFORN= G0 .
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would become erased. Once this bappened, “no
" omie will know what happetied to him and, eventu-
"glly, no ons will care.”

=@ These threats came just weeks before

Intervogators also presented Slahi with a false
wnent It v Y 1is
mother might need to be transferred tadang-térm
custody at GTMO if she did not pry

hdetails
et [N

of Slahi's true role within sl Q)

Om‘Beptembe!EB Slm"to!d bis inter-
rogatmﬁhamm had ma8e a decision t come’

theiguth”
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. (U Analvsis of Techniques RBumploved

() As explained shave, the chart, which
provides'a comprehensive picture of both approved
and employed interrogation techniques at GTMO,
belps to ifluminate whether interrogation palicy at
GTMO was adequately followed. The discussion
below provides detuils on the employment of the
individual technigues, with particular focus on-any

i
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" potential problem asess where en X marking
..~ .- ‘sppesrain either a yellow;, arangs orred hlock in |
Lo i theichert, ]

®"




JOINT STAFF
COPY NUMBER THREE

[
. . — PSR

. 2
JOINT STAFF
COPY NUMBER THREE -

! Y : ‘




- JOINT STAFF
COPY NUMBER THREE

GTMO does not exist to ramove our ensmies l'mm _Thereaﬁer t.heuseofpndeandego
, .ithe battlefield and simply detain them, but vather down required advance notice to the Secretary, and
- ‘exista to remove our enemies from the bottlefield was used only as pa:j:‘"bf Slahi's Special
o 80 thut we may- collect intelligence: that will Bave [uterrogstion Plsu, .
K 'Amencm tives. :

“.« . (U) As demonstrated by the chart, current Up and Dow»:—;,:
_mterrogatwn policy, which went into effect on |

April 16, 2008, requires that the Sacretary receive |
advance notice before incentive (and removal of |
_ incenitive) may be used as interrogation’ tech- |
niquea. This condition was fulfilled by & June }
2008, letter from GEN Hill to the Secrehry:of
‘Defense stating, “the [Walker] Working Group ri
most concerned about removing the Kmﬁ’om |

detainess. We no longer do this. Pr
. tives {¢.5. McDonald's Fish Bmﬂvvﬁn&tgﬁpm
‘ an integral part of interrogations. 'My mmnt“mo
) prw:de you notice whenw incentive
would excood that otjihed M‘W doc-
trine detailed in Arndy Field Mangsl 34-52 (which
implements ngavagg‘:?mon smdards), or”
_ when mﬁerroglms e un incentivie e
fmmnddun&." GENI-I{Edaﬁahﬁedhlnmtmt .
tn  JusfEFy, 2008 ilum to MG Millor, We
found no : Thut-ahy exceptional incentive
techniques war‘%g;_queatad or employed. :

. o

- .
(U) Pride mingo Down

-(EHn c;m:mst, interrogators infrequently
employed change of scene dawn This technique _ __ . .
was used only on Kahtani (by mterrogaﬁng him

TR U —

—SPERBTNOFORN— GTMO
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in the spartan confines of Camp X-Ray) and Slahi
(by interrogating him at Camp Echo). ’

(U) Mutt and Jeff

B
(U} Category<; Yalling, Deception, Multiple
Interroguatorggdnd Inserrogator Identity

' S ‘ - . | 1 4 ‘

O ®
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COPY NUMBER THREE

Dob Ul 2 o000 | | -




Lo * JOINT STAFF
b COPY NUMBER THREE

{wCatego:yIISmH;sﬂimﬂwugh
w v ..Presence of Military Working Dog

45> We' identified ¢nly a handful of occa-
siona where false docaments and reports were used
as part of interrogetions. As noted mbove, they
were used as part of Kahtani's Special
Tnterrogation Plan. A falss document was also
used during Slahi's interrogation, discussed sbove,

| JOINT STAFF .
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way employed - ox'f&u aa.‘lmt M“hi‘s Special
Interrogatigp Plen. @ was of times bept in a
oompletelydﬁ‘r"ﬁml] mﬁiﬁ:gjhewhmesm]wptm
a silgFiwhith, pofEi,Spebnd, hooding vas used
ogm‘g_mng Kaﬂ;a.nis Special Intarrogatiosi Plan,
&diﬁ“‘ used in&vquenth as part of thiat plan,
principalffdurig transportation rather than’
wiSi= Isolation was employed on only R, t.ioning%nd, 20-howr tnterrogations were

high-value detainees, Kahtani and Slahi, gigrussed used sgainst Kahtani beginning in Angust 2002 .
abova. Fram August 2002 to Noverﬁbew 2002, was held at the Guantanamo Brig, and .

&
-
-
:
-

Kahtani was fsalated at the Gummm&ang In then continued as part of his Special Interrogation
*  November 2002, in awmimeemh‘hm W Plan at Camp X-Ray. Slahi was also interrogated
Special Inteyrogation Plan, hewasni‘wedtom@ for up'to 20 hours during his {solation at-Camp
tion at Camp X-Ray, wherSRgasumineduptil nild- Fcho. Fourth, removel of all comfbrs items, indud-
January, 2008, whgmhe S&a{etaly ‘o "Defense  ing religious items, was used only during Kabtani's

_ rescinded his approval Shithe Diggmber 2, 2002 and Slahi's Speciat Inteumgaﬁon?lmw Fifth, an
mt.ermgahanﬁ%ﬂu;ﬁﬁms.ﬁwesmwed MRE-only diet waa fad to Kahtaninnd ‘Slabt an

back into isclition at ﬁmhemmmed i
entit Agen 2055, RN
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sion of space, which wag used as part of Kahtani'a

~ 2 detainees individual phobias were
" exploited as an interrogation tachnique. This, =
instance was discussed above, naparto!‘Kahtagia B
’ .mtermgaﬁon, whiere une interrogator recalled 888

. ing ‘& dog inside the interrogati T room.

. ¢(Additiorislly, as noted above, dogs‘&_ e wed
during Operation Exodus when Slﬁh’ﬁwas aiad 10

Camp Echa), Although dm were*qot othex%e.
nsed dunng in ’ vebeen and dre

® presence at GTMO, Hmldledby tramedmilitary

" dog handlers, umnuzzle'cﬁ.dﬂgardahnely patrol the |
grounds at GEMU s | foi%: s proteplion measure

: demgned conrage: engaging in
' umuly

o—p

‘ﬁ-

) (ﬁwmyﬁ led waunau
Physwal‘&antact

we consider femals inva-

' " GTMD
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- (U) Notably, on April 22, 003, this tech-
Hique ‘Was eraployed in an unsuthioyized and inap-
propriately aggressive imanner; when an
intexrogator directsd MPy- to farilitite bringing.
Abu Ghanim !'rJ)m standing t0 a prond position,
eand the detainee suffered superficial brulsing to
tia Jneas. As g result; the interrogatar involved
was issued @ lotter of reprimand. Furthermore, '
this abuse was compounded by the fact that the
Secretexy did not receive advanca notice prior 0
the employment of this technique on April 22,
2003, even ﬂxérngh the April 16, 2003 policy
requires such advance notice whenever technigues
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not listed in the policy (such a8 physical training) |
ore employed. This ineident was identified and
summarized in the May 2004 Chureh Review

|

I
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" (U Sleep Deprivation.

. 174

(tJ)UseofW:'eatemngScenm—wsmd
* Threats Against Others
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\
U) Fmally, ort April 17, 2008, a female
mMgator made inappropriate contact with a

" detainee by nmning her fingers through the
. detainee’y hair and making sexually auggaanve
wmmanl:s and hody movements, including sit-
ting on the detainee's lap. " As mentioned in the
_abusa section of | oour repart, we used the Maoual
for Courts Mutial definition of sexua! assault,

e

terize any potantial gaxusl] assault case.

Consequently;, wﬁ did not consider this case to be
a sexual assault boeauae the interrogator did net
perpetrate the act with the intent to gratify her
‘own sexual desires. The female interrogator waa
given a written \admomshment for her actions.

This incident wﬁs identified and sumtnarized in
the May 2004 Church Review.

| referred therein- aa “Indecent Assault? to-characs
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ing the raliability of irformation in ongeing inves.
Higaticns, we imited our review primarily to closed
investigations. In meking that determination, we
recognized that many of the sngoing investigations
_ wauld probsbly be closed as unsubstantiated (cor
rent substantiation ‘rate for Iraq sbuse investiga-
tions is approximately 40%) and ‘acknowledged

that additional information could be uncovered

that would change the character of open investiga-

one. By focusing on closed investigations, we

sought to remove uncertainty and increass the reli-
ability of our findings. ;

—

(1), Of the 44 incidents- identified in %

Fay's report, 26 incidents are covered by sgiwn ciD
investigations. Pour of those CID i

nre closed and two substantiate q'b@e ¢

asseult of a female detaines™dt. Abu Gl!!!a.ib

desaribed above, and @ cage mvolvmg_the use ,gt”
military working dogs Wﬁmﬁdﬁame). the
od:her CID mvmtlgatwﬁsnd‘ the Apu Ghrm'b"ihuws

remain open as ofgl_apgembw 30, ﬁBM.

{. i
.. () Foglly
repoxt n!hnoﬂ%ddressed @ CID investigutions,
These md&gﬁgm-ﬁhmh involve dstainee
‘nudity, isolafﬁ%_ and humiliation, .have been

deemed outside of CIDVs investigative

respansibilities, and<are cousidered sufficiently
covered in MG Fay'siéeport for adrinistrakive and

disciplinary purposes.

———
"

18 ofﬂ‘@indﬁénts in MG Feys

(i) Connluéians Interrogation
Techmqueé and Abuse

149)) In sum, our .zﬁagor ﬁndmgﬁ regarding
interrogetion tec}nnm euw]qyad‘, snd interroge-
tion-relatad abusggm Iraq are‘-‘ia follaws.

« (O -ﬁ.gsemma% of appruved mtﬂ'ruga
tion: pbmeums iiatEective, often resaﬂhing
L m»mt&ho‘g'aﬁiﬁé-hek of awareneas of which
=2 tachmqua wera-cunenﬂy suthorized. This
Vs largalfsdﬁa to reliance on SIPRNET ns
theu@um for dmsemmahng guidance,

‘,-(ﬂ“

- EJ’) Campllanco with approved interroga-
w-ﬂ-ﬂon policies was often incomplete, even

when umts were in posaession of the latest

gmdance Warrant officer or senjor-enlist-

ed interrogators had to orally convey fine- . ¢
ly nuanced policies to janior enlisted and
_ eontrect interrogstors without the benefit

of ﬁ.rsthancl knowledge of the legal consid- . L
ernt.mﬁs that had guided ‘policy devaop- :
mt I e

303 .
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{U) Missed Opﬂortupdties

@ Our lmvasi:gahﬁ:zi uug'ges'bd sevezal
addztionnl "m.isséd oppaﬁmnibieh (besides those
suggested by our ﬁn&'l—n'gn a‘t&f’e) None of thess
missed oppomm thexggplvesfwntributed to or
causad abm»mhd&m; it i unfikely thet they
~ could- have‘w ted 'ﬁm ipterrogation-related
shusesBhet did‘omhxchﬂwem already prohibit-
ed,}ag, other eamﬂing pﬁﬁmes law, and doctzine.
. H‘Bwe‘?&‘,_had they‘heen pursued, US: forces might
*have bm‘%aﬁar prepared for detention and inter-
« (U) There was no evidence of explicit pres= mwﬂmk&q

sure for intelligence othey than tlaﬁ:lggxﬁ-

mately conveyed from CJ;IQ‘:? (and w.a(-tD There\ wes no evidenca that epecific
\ subsaquently MINFLI) he-dgu@ters Sedinter- pention and interrogation leasons learned .

: nil‘

o

roaatureviathe dlamnfumlmand - réfmm prev&ous conflits in the Bﬁl]mns,

e end
vy

Py

Py 1

‘ : . mmopﬁmmmmd the
. " pondnterrogaticitaluses~gt Abu Ghraib,
- Appear unmlatadto‘@v approved. interyo- - < . S
\ * gation p&ho:les. I?Eﬁrﬁ@mﬁxe promulga- . (U) There ?vere no standerd procedures for

Afghanistan, and elsewhere were incorpo-
rated in planning for Opmhm mAQL
FREEDOM.

“tion nf%he Scpbaxi?%t afd October 2008 xdenhﬁnng“ of ¥epoiting detainee abuse or
C&Lﬂ:‘ 7 Mﬁgaﬁnn?nhaes didnot appear for determimng whether ghuse ullogations
top]aya\ny ; Foledn th alimses at Abu Ghraib were lep.tnhate. us servwemembers, DaoD "
or my Me closed, substantisted abuse civilians, ahd conh-antnra umformly report-

| cases in Trage.in fact, had the policies been A edﬂxatthd;hadanobhgauontowpm'tm?

adhered to, sothe of the sbuges might have. abuse that‘-. they observed; however, their

| : been preventé® . descriptions of what constituted ebuse

— @

i | 3 TSECRETANOFORMN- * ray
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(which ranged from 'beatxng' to "verbal
abuse™, to whom they would report abuse
{ranging from their immediate superior in
commend to the unit inspector gemeral),
and who would determine whether abuse
allegations were legitimate {often the genior
enlisted or warrent officer, and sowetimes
the interrogator him or hergelf) were highly
veried. .

« wiiiin Dacember 2003, at MG Fagt's mqumt,
COL Stuart A. Herrington, USA (Rl#u'ﬂd)
conducted a review of interrogation aﬁ'H sport wai not cirenlatad represent-
detention opemions in Iraq, completing lm_.,.:‘-::d eda d oppaxtlnﬁtyto focus mo:eclose
report on December 12. Whik, COL™ '& on ‘cond:hons at Abu Ghraib, and the

. Hemngmnstsxedmhampmj&the'dxd o ...fghoeﬁdetamee issue in particulsr, sy early

the fact that Herringtons

not see or learn’ ofanxmndmm_that = asbeéamherzoos We note, however, that -
Mm&esa:ebeingﬂleg&ﬂj‘orimprd&._@y many of the sbuses at Abu Ghraib had -
treated at Abu Chraib," he dxa'make smi’E nh-ea.dy ocrurred by the time of Hemngtnns-
relevant observahmw:n our . visit |
Summary of mtl saq:um Herrington |
related numerpus B’mxemaw Abu Ghreib  (U) Other Isgues

‘and for:the ﬁxmﬁmswthe ismue of o e

“ghost &meee Sﬁhe nm—doctrzml term { ?_, y, we offer some observations on

=

fgaaieta&ps heid w:i'ﬁmut internment geri- detention and interrogation imsues concerning
gl mx‘nharem.OGAni coalition and lraqi National Guard fotces. “

-(S)"Mule Herrington presented bis  (U) Coaliﬁo&i-librcéé
primary ohlermtiom during an cut-brief to
MG Fast priokfo his departure,

(0} Thougk coalition forces in Irag fall
under the command of MNRI {(and previously
CITF-7), we did not visit any nop-1LB.-run detens
tion faclities or eondiict any interviews with non-
US. personnel. The Britlsh and Australian

. 305
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Medical Findings o

{U) Qur findings relevant to medicel isses,
sre organized below into four sections. The first
section i an overview of detsinoe deaths and the
processes in place to determing causes of death.
Three site-specific sections then follow, addressing

Guantunamo Bay, Afghanistan, and Irag, respec -

tively. The site-specifie sections include reviews of
individual detainee deaths, along with other
lmpreamom from local aite vigits and interviews of

ofGamnta.nnmo Bay iz mors extensive and ﬂd:mled

thein those of Afghanistan and Iraqg Althnuwm-

unintended, this ix no accidant. The con@ﬂh'ation
of facilities and stable anvirmnt at
' Gunntana.mo Bay allowed u,ina yai& bnwod

peracnnel. mswasrm%pomﬁ‘nmgmstan
: andlraq T
- - . . .'.. — '2%-

. w O';.c ﬁn&.\nge'ln l‘!ﬂakton to dotn.mee
" desthd dre” ba@dpﬁmm‘iﬁ&ondﬁx own réview of
investigiiiye Smmary rgports by CID as of
Septmba'%"gz‘zﬂmﬂg,aﬁgmented these veviews
with dlscussloi’i“:sof overall processes and selected
individual cases &t gamttuﬂze OAFME o -

Rockvills, Mar.vlm .

!'1'.’

W&mmm feports in mesaage for-
mat; ave prepared by CID investigators to comutin-
nicate and pericdically updnte findings from

.346
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verious investigations. Reports on detainee deaths

briefly sutamarize the| cireumstances of death,
information obtained frpom  jifdividusl statements,
and gvailable meﬂ.ical ion on the cause of
death. These Cﬂ)
criminal inveatngq!_n_‘ans .detemne any likelihood
‘ not’ﬁxm on aedical

thosg_@es wht 4 oonducted an autops;;
aﬁﬁ&le CID Eegords allv mdude oo;nes of

cmtent

'Q‘J) We elepted to btudy detainee deaths for
prigmatic reasons.

ewni:a maore likely t.b

:nre\newmg

to definitively assess

to healthcare or personnel, and for
insights on how their related to those of nom
medical pmcesseé and irdividuals, Our eassess-
§ ectiv:
ments in this regbrd are necesaarily sub) e

esﬁy_ahéhs are primarily |

A
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(U) Overview of Detainee Deaths

- RGN of September 80, 2004 we had
information on 95 individuals reported to have
died while detained undar the control.of U.S,
Armed Forces in Afghanistan (five individuals)
and Iraq (90 individuals), as shown in the table
on thie following page. No detainses have died at
Guentanamo Bay. These 95 individuals include
68 mentioned in. CID investigative sununary

custody in Afghanistan or Irag. Pach autopsy
was conducted in country by an QAFME pathol-
ogiat. On-call pathologists are dispatched quick.
1y when OAFME is nomﬁé& of 5 deteinee death,
The usual mhwa] bgﬂwe‘éi‘yjegfﬁ‘*md sitopsy ig

severs] é.ays‘ Thﬂ' lrmgest 'miarval wus about
three weeks. 'I‘ﬁé'%&ar muaﬂ&fwﬂitms allow

“for preserxahon of“-‘.‘-.*.-emmns dntil autopsy,

Autopay repdftn.are genargt_gd within daya. No
auto;sggtﬂpoﬁ has been cbanged ot amended., *

T
"
¥

reports (five in Afghanistan and 63 in Iraq) and
another 37 known to bave been killed by enemy w—hﬁw casas, QAFME, sutopsy

mortar attacks on Abu Ghraib prison :ﬁ' mpms}xamdr&‘exmtﬁndmgsor canges of death than
Baghdad, Iragq. Five detainees died in such & &by clinical -providers oo mm at the

d’fﬁ.,'

" attack on August 16, 2003 and 22 ascainw died "mm%ath Initsaﬂ:ﬂmsmtaumﬁmnym

in such an attack on April 20, 2004, £} the 63 womm,ﬁﬂmpmpmdswﬁeqwmuvﬂmmmm
individuals mentioned in CID mvgw"gat“ﬁuum in ﬂmvnmstatas OAFME autopsy Tepotta v not.
mary reports, one individual apmm apon: iﬁﬁes nads publxc, bt‘tt are shared immedintely with CID_ )

tigation to represent e false repoxw:‘ detmnegr inveatigatars, Tn May 2004, the OAFME uﬁhped it

death (in Iraq), and anot;h
clearly known to have.&h kxlkd while Fi
prison (all in IragL Oveml] mmtggahom by
CID are #till gpén pen ToR25. Bl detaines’
desths, includfng four in¥fghaBlsten and 21 in
Iraq Th:bughmt thia tmf%n on medica issues,
nmnencal‘ﬁpam 0 reported individual

" datrinee dea&_and not to investigative cases,

The convention: bginvestxgatxve cases” ig nsed
eltewhere in this Feport, bui can gometimes
fnvalve more then opg detainee subject.

“TFOUUT The OAFME has conducted 90
sutopsies on detsiness who diad whils under U8,

®  Adical

accumulated detamee ansbopsy reports as the basia fo
mngmmnmmpmmblemmaﬁmmldeﬂh
certificate for each deceased. Internatimal death cer-
.hﬁcatmhadnqtbeen mxedwimbyommme
wmmmabautwhnlwdpmparhplmm...
underJocal jurisdiction in Afghenistan and Iraq to ane
such official documents for non-Americans who die and
undesgo autopay in those coumtries,

1)) Gnanta;hamn Bay

WOUBT Detainess st Guentanamo Bay
7
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